
Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Conwy a Sir Ddinbych 

trwy gynhadledd fideo 

 

Dydd Mawrth, 12 Rhagfyr 2023 

10.00 am 

AELODAU STATUDOL 

Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy 
Y Cynghorydd Charlie McCoubrey (Arweinydd y 
Cyngor) 
Rhun apGareth (Prif Weithredwr) 
 
Cyngor Sir Ddinbych 
Y Cynghorydd Jason McLellan (Arweinydd y 
Cyngor) 
Graham Boase (Prif Weithredwr) 

Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr 
Libby Ryan-Davies (Cyfarwyddwr Cymunedol 
Iechyd Integredig) 
Alyson Constantine (Cyfarwyddwr Cymunedol 
Iechyd Integredig) 
 
Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru 
Martin Cox (Pennaeth Gweithrediadau ar gyfer 
y Gogledd) 
Mark Hughes (Arweinydd Tîm Gogledd 
Ddwyrain Cymru) 
 
Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub Gogledd Cymru 
Helen Macarthur (Prif Swyddog Cynorthwyol) 

CYFRANOGWYR A WAHODDWYD 

Cefnogaeth Gymunedol a Gwirfoddol Conwy 
Wendy Jones (Prif Swyddog) 
 
Cyngor Gwasanaethau Gwirfoddol Sir 
Ddinbych 
Tom Barham (Prif Weithredwr) 
 
Iechyd Cyhoeddus  
Louise Woodfine (Ymgynghorydd Iechyd y 
Cyhoedd) 
 
Cynghorau Tref & Chymuned 
Y Cynghorydd Carol Marubbi (cynrychioli 
Conwy) 
Y Cynghorydd Gordon Hughes (cynrychioli Sir 
Ddinbych) 

Heddlu Gogledd Cymru 
Owain Llewelyn (Cadlywydd y Rhanbarth) 
 
Gwasanaeth Prawf Cenedlaethol 
Andy Jones (Pennaeth yr Uned Cyflenwi Prawf)  
 
Cynrychiolydd Llywodraeth Cymru 
I'w gadarnhau 
 
Swyddfa Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throsedd 
Gogledd Cymru 
Stephen Hughes (Prif Weithredwr) 
 
Cymdeithas Tai Gogledd Cymru  

Helena Kirk (Prif Weithredwr) 
 

 

Hannah Edwards, Swyddog Datblygu BGC 

Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy, Bodlondeb, Conwy, LL32 8DU 

01492 574059 hannah.edwards@conwy.gov.uk  

 

 

mailto:hannah.edwards@conwy.gov.uk


AGENDA 

 

 

 

1 CROESO AC YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 
 

2 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD DIWETHAF(Tudalennau 4 - 11) 

 Cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd 25 Medi 2023 (copi’n amgaeedig). 

 

3 TRACIO CAMAU GWEITHREDU'R CYFARFOD(Tudalen 12) 

 Bydd y Cadeirydd yn arwain ar yr eitem hon (copi’n amgaeedig). 

 

4 DATBLYGU CYNLLUN YMGYSYLLTU Â'R GYMUNED 

 Derbyn cyflwyniad gan Mike Corcoran, Cyd-gynhyrchu ar ddatblygiad y cynllun ymgysylltu 

cymunedol. 

 

5 RISGIAU CORFFORAETHOL A PHROBLEMAU A NODWYD 

 Derbyn cyflwyniad gan Amanda Jones, Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy ynghylch y Risgiau 

Corfforaethol, a Chanfyddiadau Materion. 

 

6 ADEILADU CYFOETH CYMUNEDOL A CHAFFAEL CYNYDDOL - 

CANFYDDIADAU AC ARGYMHELLION Y CYNLLUN PEILOT(Tudalennau 13 - 45) 

 Derbyn cyflwyniad gan Amanda Jones, Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy ynghylch Adeiladu 

Cyfoeth Cymunedol a Chaffael Blaengar – Canfyddiadau peilot ac argymhellion. 

 

7 ARWEINYDDIAETH SYSTEMAU - DIWEDDARIAD AR YMAGWEDD PSB 

 Derbyn cyflwyniad gan Amanda Jones, Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy ynghylch agwedd y 

BGC at arweinyddiaeth systemau. 

 

8 RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL(Tudalennau 46 - 48) 



 Bydd y Cadeirydd yn arwain ar yr eitem hon (copi ynghlwm). 

 

 



 

BWRDD GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS CONWY A SIR DDINBYCH 
 
Cofnodion cyfarfod Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Conwy a Sir Ddinbych a gynhaliwyd 
yn Siambr y Cyngor, Neuadd y Sir, Rhuthun a thrwy gynhadledd fideo ddydd Llun, 25 
Medi 2023 am 2.00 pm. 
 
 

PRESENNOL 

Aelodau:  

Cynghorydd Jason McLellan (Cadeirydd)                                           Cyngor Sir Ddinbych 

Cynghorydd Charlie McCoubrey                                     Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy 

Graham Boase                                                             Cyngor Sir Ddinbych 

Martin Cox                                                                    Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru 

Helena Kirk                                                                   Cymdeithas Tai Gogledd Cymru 

Siwan Jones (ar ran Louise Woodfine) Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr 
(Iechyd y Cyhoedd) 

Wendy Jones                                                               Cefnogaeth Gymunedol a Gwirfoddol 
Conwy 

Tom Barham                                                                Cyngor Gwasanaethau Gwirfoddol Sir 
Ddinbych 

Carol Marubbi                                                            Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned – 
cynrychiolydd Conwy 

 
Swyddogion:  
Emma Lea                                      Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr 
Fran Lewis                                     Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy 
Mike Corcoran                               Rhwydwaith Cydgynhyrchu Cymru 
Iolo McGregor                                Cyngor Sir Ddinbych 
Helen Miliband                               Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru 
Iona Hughes                                   Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru 
Helena Belmans                             Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr 
Kath Jones                                    Cyngor Sir Ddinbych 
Rhodri Tomos-Jones                    Cyngor Sir Ddinbych 
Hannah Edwards                           Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy 
 
 

  
1 CROESO AC YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau oddi wrth - 
 
Helen MacArthur - Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub Gogledd Cymru 
Kevin Jones - Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub Gogledd Cymru 
Rhun ap Gareth - Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy 
 
Oherwydd yr ymddiheuriadau a dderbyniwyd gan bartneriaid statudol, ni 
fyddai cworwm yn y cyfarfod. Bydd unrhyw gamau gweithredu / argymhellion 
a gynigir yn cael eu hystyried a’u cymeradwyo yng nghyfarfod nesaf y BGC 
ym mis Rhagfyr. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



 
2 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD DIWETHAF 

 
Cyflwynwyd cofnodion cyfarfod Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Conwy a Sir 
Ddinbych a gynhaliwyd ar 17 Gorffennaf 2023. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD derbyn a chymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 17 
Gorffennaf 2023 fel cofnod cywir. 
 

3 TRACIO CAMAU GWEITHREDU'R CYFARFOD 
 
Cyflwynodd y Cadeirydd, Jason McLellan, y Camau Gweithredu i’w holrhain yn y 
cyfarfod.  

 

 Mae'r Cadeirydd a Tom Barnham (DVSC) wedi cyfarfod i drafod cynnwys 
partneriaid trydydd sector yn y BGC ac wedi awgrymu archwilio arfer gorau 
mewn mannau eraill. 

 Byddai'r gefnogaeth gyda choladu gwybodaeth ar gyfer y siarter teithio llesol 
yn cael ei gyflwyno i'r BGC ym mis Rhagfyr. 

  Byddai'r ymgysylltu â'r garfan arweinyddiaeth system gyfan genedlaethol 
hefyd yn cael ei drafod ym mis Rhagfyr. 

 Byddai canfyddiadau casglu risgiau a materion o bob rhan o Fyrddau 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Gogledd Cymru yn cael eu cyflwyno yng 
nghyfarfod mis Rhagfyr. 

 Roedd cynllun ymgysylltu ar y gweill a chaiff ei drafod yn ddiweddarach yn y 
cyfarfod hwn. 

 Holodd yr aelodau a fyddai'r BGC yn elwa yn y dyfodol o gael trafodaeth 
strategol ar y parc cenedlaethol arfaethedig yng Ngogledd Cymru. 
 

4 CYFRAITH GOFAL GWRTHGYFARTAL 
  
Cyflwynodd Helena Belmans, Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr ar y rhaglen 
Cyfraith Gofal Gwrthgyfartal yng Ngogledd Cymru, gyflwyniad 
  
Ym mis Awst 2021, cychwynnwyd rhaglen Cyfraith Gofal Gwrthgyfartal (CGG) gan 
y Bwrdd Iechyd. Mae cysyniad y Ddeddf Gofal Gwrthgyfartal yn dyddio'n ôl i 1971 
gan Julian Tudor Hart. Mae’n disgrifio sut oedd y rhai sydd â’r angen mwyaf am ofal 
iechyd yn lleiaf tebygol o’i dderbyn, ac mewn cyferbyniad, mae’r rhai sydd â’r angen 
lleiaf am ofal iechyd yn tueddu i gael mynediad at wasanaethau gofal iechyd yn fwy 
effeithiol, gan arwain at anghydraddoldebau iechyd. 
  
Mae rhaglen Cyfraith Gofal Gwrthgyfartal BIPBC yn defnyddio dull seiliedig ar le 
drwy ddod â phartneriaid (sector iechyd, llywodraeth leol, diwydiant, y sector 
gwirfoddol a’r trydydd sector, llais y dinesydd) at ei gilydd ar ôl troed clwstwr gofal 
sylfaenol i hwyluso cydweithio ar y penderfynyddion ehangach sy’n achosi iechyd 
anghyfartaledd. 
  
Trwy'r hwyluso hwn byddai'r CGG yn annog y bartneriaeth honno i nodi lle mae'r 
anghydraddoldeb iechyd yn dod i'r amlwg yn yr ardal glwstwr a'u galluogi i lunio'r 
gweithredu ar y cyd sydd ei angen i fynd i'r afael ag achosion anghydraddoldeb 

Page 5



iechyd. Nod y rhaglen oedd galluogi dull partneriaeth seiliedig ar le i fynd i’r afael ag 
anghydraddoldebau iechyd ar draws Gogledd Cymru drwy adeiladu ar alluoedd, 
asedau, mewnwelediadau a pherthnasoedd a rennir ar draws sectorau i dyfu, 
gweithredu a rhannu arloesedd lleol. 
  
Mae'r CGG yn ystyried gofal sylfaenol fel eiriolwyr ar gyfer iechyd eu poblogaeth. 
Elfen hanfodol o’n rhaglen yw asio’r ymagwedd at uchelgeisiau rhaglen Datblygu 
Clystyrau Carlam y Rhaglen Strategol ar gyfer Gofal Sylfaenol i gefnogi 
cydweithredu effeithiol ar lefel gymunedol i asesu anghenion y boblogaeth. 
  
Felly, roedd yr CGG yn bwriadu profi’r dull trawsnewid arfaethedig gyda thri 
chlwstwr gofal sylfaenol yn ystod 2023/24, yr ydym wedi’u galw’n ‘glystyrau arloesi’. 
Ym mis Tachwedd 2022, cadarnhawyd mai clystyrau gofal sylfaenol Ynys Môn, 
Canol a De Sir Ddinbych a Gogledd-orllewin Sir y Fflint oedd y tri chlwstwr 
arloeswyr. Hysbyswyd y bwrdd bod y tri rhanbarth hyn wedi'u dewis wrth iddynt 
ymateb i'r llythyrau o ddiddordeb a anfonwyd at 14 o glystyrau.  
 
Datblygwyd y dull trawsnewid arfaethedig yn ystod 2022 ac mae’n dwyn ynghyd 
elfennau o reoli newid, methodoleg gwella a newid ymddygiad. Byddai’r dull hwn yn 
mynd â phob clwstwr o arloeswyr drwy broses hunan fyfyrio wedi’i hwyluso gyda 
thri gweithdy gwahanol ond cysylltiedig: 
  
Byddai'r gweithdy cyntaf (Adeiladu'r tîm: beth yw ein 'pam'?) yn dod â dealltwriaeth 
o anghydraddoldebau iechyd yng Ngogledd Cymru a'i achosion ynghyd wrth 
ddarparu gofod ar gyfer cysylltiadau â sefydliadau eraill i werthfawrogi'r hyn y gall 
sectorau gwahanol ei gyfrannu. 
  
Byddai’r CGG yn cyflwyno ein pecyn cymorth hunan fyfyrio, a fydd yn galluogi’r 
clwstwr i fyfyrio ar eu sefyllfa leol wrth fynd i’r afael ag anghydraddoldebau a 
chyfranogiad mewn systemau cymorth cymunedol. Mae'n gweithio trwy chwe 
sylfaen ar gyfer adeiladu camau gweithredu effeithiol ar draws y system i leihau 
anghydraddoldebau. Mae'n gweithredu trwy gyfres o gwestiynau ac awgrymiadau 
i'w hannog i gymryd rhan mewn ffyrdd penodol o feddwl i ysgogi sgwrs. 
  
Byddai’r ail weithdy (Ein cymuned: beth yw ein man cychwyn?) yn parhau i weithio 
ar y chwe sylfaen. Byddai’r ICL hefyd yn galluogi’r bartneriaeth i ddeall lle y gallai 
fod angen cyfeirio ymdrechion drwy edrych yn fanylach ar yr amgylchedd lleol ac 
anghenion ar sut mae anghydraddoldebau iechyd yn ymddangos, gan ddarparu 
ffordd well o fewnwelediad, gan gynnwys y wybodaeth feintiol ac ansoddol i helpu 
nodi anghydraddoldebau iechyd a chefnogi cynllunio gweithredu, roedd hyn yn 
ymwneud â deall mewnwelediad lleol (data, dadansoddi, mewnwelediadau, straeon 
cymunedol) i helpu timau i gael gwybodaeth a mewnwelediad ar yr 
anghydraddoldebau iechyd ar lefel lle. Ochr yn ochr â hyn, byddai deall yr asedau o 
fewn y clwstwr yn agwedd bwysig o hyn fel bod y bartneriaeth yn cydnabod yr 
adnoddau sydd ar gael. 
  
Yn olaf, bydd y trydydd gweithdy (Mynd i'r afael ag anghydraddoldeb iechyd gyda'n 
gilydd: gadewch i ni ei wneud!) Bydd y gweithdy hwn yn rhoi'r gofod i bartneriaid 
nodi syniadau, prosiectau, a chamau gweithredu y gallant eu cymryd i fynd i'r afael 
ag anghydraddoldeb iechyd, gan arwain at nodi rownd gyntaf o fentrau 
cydweithredol .  

Page 6



Byddai'r ICL yn ceisio deall yr adnoddau sydd eu hangen i gefnogi'r 
gweithgareddau hynny. Y cynlluniau sy’n deillio o’r gwaith hwn a fydd yn llywio 
Cynllun Ymyrraeth ac Arloesi Anghydraddoldebau Iechyd cychwynnol (YAAI) y 
Bwrdd Iechyd. Byddai’n disgrifio’r newidiadau lleol y byddai ein clystyrau o 
arloeswyr yn eu profi, y manteision y byddai’r bartneriaeth yn ceisio’u cyflawni ar 
gyfer eu poblogaeth leol a sut y caiff hyn ei werthuso. 
  
Diolchodd y bwrdd i Helena Belmans am y cyflwyniad; awgrymwyd, unwaith y bydd 
yr holl weithdai wedi’u cynnal, y dylai Helena ddychwelyd i’r BGC i roi’r wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf i’r bwrdd am unrhyw ganfyddiadau. Cytunodd y bwrdd hefyd fod yr ICL 
yn asio’n dda â chynllun llesiant y BGC ac y byddai’n fuddiol cadw llygad ar y 
mater. Mynegodd cadeirydd y BGC, y Cynghorydd Jason McLellan ddiddordeb 
mewn mynychu’r gweithdai, a dywedodd Helena y byddai’r gwahoddiad yn cael ei 
ddosbarthu i’r aelodau. 
  
Roedd aelodau’r bwrdd yn cefnogi’r rhaglen Cyfraith Gofal Gwrthgyfartal yng 
Ngogledd Cymru, a byddai’n dda pe bai cymaint o fudd-ddeiliaid â phosibl yn 
ymwneud â’r broses. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD bod y BGC yn nodi cynnwys y cyflwyniad. 
 

5 DATBLYGU CYNLLUN YMGYSYLLTU Â'R GYMUNED 
  
Rhoddodd Mike Corcoran, Cyd-gynhyrchu, gyflwyniad i’r bwrdd yn rhoi’r wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf iddynt am Ddatblygu’r Cynllun Ymgysylltu Cymunedol. 
  
Dylai pawb yng Nghonwy a Sir Ddinbych wybod beth oedd eu Bwrdd 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus, sut roedd yn gweithio i wella llesiant i bawb a chael 
cyfleoedd ystyrlon a hygyrch i fod yn rhan o lunio’r gwaith hwn, lle bynnag y 
byddai’n effeithio ar eu bywydau. 
  
Wrth ddilyn y genhadaeth hon, rhaid i’r BGC: 
  

 Ymgysylltu â’i chymunedau – gan gynnwys pawb sy’n byw ac yn gweithio yn 
yr ardal a’r bobl a’r sefydliadau sy’n eu cynrychioli. 

 Ymgysylltu â'i bartneriaid - gan gynnwys yr holl sefydliadau, grwpiau a 
rhwydweithiau sydd ag ymrwymiad ar y cyd i wella lles yn yr ardal 

 Ymgysylltu â'i weithlu - gan gynnwys yr holl staff ar bob lefel. 
  
Bob amser, byddai ein gwaith yn cael ei wneud yn unol ag 'Egwyddor Cynnwys 
Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015. Os bydd yn llwyddiannus, 
dylai ein hymgysylltu: 
  

 Galluogi gwell amrywiaeth a chynrychiolaeth - gyda mwy o bobl yn cyfrannu 
at waith y BGCau a chael gwared ar rwystrau i gyfranogiad 

 Galluogi gwell ymddiriedaeth a pherthnasoedd - rhwng pobl, eu BGC a'i 
aelod sefydliadau gydag adborth rheolaidd a deialog barhaus 

 Galluogi effeithiau mwy arwyddocaol - gyda mwy yn cael ei gyflawni trwy 
wneud pethau gyda'n gilydd, lleihau dyblygu a blinder ymgynghori 

 Darparu budd i'r ddwy ochr - o werth i'r BGC a phawb sy'n ymgysylltu ag ef.  

Page 7



Rhoddwyd enghreifftiau lluosog o achosion o ymgysylltu â'r gymuned i'r bwrdd 
drwy'r cyflwyniad; roedd y rhain yn cynnwys – 
  

 Presenoldeb Ar-lein - Pe bai rhywun yn chwilio am BGC Conwy a Sir 
Ddinbych ar-lein heddiw, a fyddent yn cael argraff deg a chywir o'n gwaith 
a'n gweithgareddau, ac a fyddent yn teimlo eu bod yn cael eu hannog i 
gefnogi a chymryd rhan mewn gwaith? A yw ein presenoldeb ar-lein yn 
hwyluso derbyn, yn ogystal â rhannu, gwybodaeth, ac a ydym yn defnyddio 
ein presenoldeb ar-lein i gyfleu sut yr oedd mewnbwn pobl i waith y BGC yn 
gwneud gwahaniaeth gwirioneddol a diriaethol? A yw ein presenoldeb ar-
lein yn cyrraedd pawb yn ein cymuned, neu a allai defnyddio offer, 
llwyfannau neu ddulliau newydd helpu i ehangu a gwella cyrhaeddiad y 
BGC? 

 Datblygu'r Gweithlu - Pa gyfran o'r staff yn ein haelod sefydliadau BGC 
fyddai'n gwybod beth yw'r BGC, beth mae'n ei wneud, a beth mae 
arwyddocâd aelodaeth eu sefydliad o'r BGC yn ei olygu iddyn nhw? A oedd 
unrhyw ffyrdd yr oedd diffyg gwybodaeth am y gweithlu am waith y BGC yn 
rhwystro’r gwaith o gyflawni’r cynllun llesiant? A gollwyd eu cyfleoedd i 
gyfran fwy sylweddol ac amrywiaeth o’n gweithluoedd gael eu cynnwys yn y 
gwaith o gyflawni ein cynlluniau llesiant, gan wella eu heffaith? Pa fesurau 
(er enghraifft, hyfforddiant) oedd ar waith i hysbysu ein gweithlu am waith 
ein BGC? 

 Gweithio mewn Partneriaeth - A yw holl aelodau'r BGC yn teimlo tegwch o 
amgylch bwrdd y BGC, gyda rolau a chyfrifoldebau yn gymesur â'u maint, 
eu gallu a'u cylch gorchwyl? A ydynt yn teimlo eu bod yn cael cefnogaeth 
lawn ac adnoddau i gyflawni'r rolau hyn? Sut mae’r BGC yn ymgysylltu â’r 
rhai nad ydynt yn aelodau, beth oedd nodau ac amcanion y BGC, ac a 
geisiwyd ymgysylltiad o’r fath yn rhagweithiol? I ba raddau y dylanwadwyd 
ar waith y BGC gan waith ei bartneriaid, ac i ba raddau y dylanwadodd y 
BGC ar waith ei bartneriaid? A yw arferion gwaith, diwylliannau, a'r seilwaith 
presennol (cyfathrebu, rhannu data, ac ati) yn helpu neu'n rhwystro gweithio 
mewn partneriaeth? 

 Cynllunio Gweithredu - Sut byddai'r Cynllun Lles yn cael ei drosi'n gamau 
gweithredu gwirioneddol, diriaethol a fyddai'n effeithio'n uniongyrchol ar 
fywydau pobl yng Nghonwy a Sir Ddinbych? Ble roedd gwybodaeth leol a 
phrofiad byw yn hanfodol i ategu arbenigedd proffesiynol a thechnegol wrth 
ddylunio a darparu atebion newydd i heriau cymhleth wrth gyflawni’r Cynllun 
Llesiant? Sut ydym ni’n bwriadu cynnwys pobl wrth ddylunio a chyflawni 
camau gweithredu, a sut byddai’r cyfleoedd hyn yn cael eu gwneud yn 
apelgar, yn ystyrlon ac yn hygyrch i bawb yn ein cymuned, y rhai a allai 
wynebu’r rhwystrau mwyaf arwyddocaol i gyfranogiad? 

 Amrywiaeth a Chynrychiolaeth - I ba raddau mae amrywiaeth o fewn y BGC 
yn adlewyrchu'r amrywiaeth yng Nghonwy a Sir Ddinbych? I ba raddau mae 
ein gweithgareddau ymgynghori ac ymgysylltu presennol yn cyrraedd pawb 
yng Nghonwy a Sir Ddinbych? A oedd eu cymunedau yr oeddem yn methu 
ag ymgysylltu â nhw? I bwy y mae ein harferion ymgysylltu presennol yn 
debygol o fod yn rhwystrau i gyfranogiad, a sut y gellir eu goresgyn 

  
Trafododd y Bwrdd y canlynol ymhellach -  

Page 8



 Roedd y bwrdd yn ddiolchgar am y cyflwyniad cynhwysfawr a byddai’n 
ymdrechu i sicrhau bod y pwnc ymgysylltu cymunedol yn cael ei gadw ar 
flaen agenda’r BGC ac na fyddai’n cael ei golli. 

 Cytunodd y bwrdd hefyd fod codi ymwybyddiaeth o'r BGC o fewn y 
sefydliadau sy'n cynrychioli'r bwrdd a thrigolion Sir Ddinbych a Chonwy yn 
hynod bwysig. 

 Tynnodd y bwrdd sylw at amseriadau cynlluniau llesiant a chynlluniau 
corfforaethol Conwy a Sir Ddinbych, ac nid oedd cynlluniau’r BGC ar yr un 
pryd, sy’n achosi problemau o ran cael naratif a rennir rhwng y partïon; 
awgrymwyd y gallai hyn fod yn rhywbeth y gellid edrych arno wrth symud 
ymlaen. 

 Awgrymodd y bwrdd ddiweddariadau cyson ar y cynllun ymgysylltu a dull 
cyfannol i sicrhau bod y gwaith yn cael ei wneud ac nad oedd dim yn cael ei 
golli. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD bod y BGC yn nodi cyflwyniad Datblygu'r Cynllun Ymgysylltu 
Cymunedol. 
 

6 GRYMUSO CYMUNEDAU AMRYWIOL I ENNILL CYFLOGAETH: 
CANFYDDIADAU YMGYSYLLTU A'R CAMAU NESAF 
 
Cyflwynodd Fran Lewis (FL), Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy (CBSC) yr adroddiad 
Grymuso Cymunedau Amrywiol i Gyflogaeth (a gylchlythyrwyd yn flaenorol). Mae’r 
adroddiad yn crynhoi’r ymgysylltu, a gynhaliwyd rhwng Mehefin ac Awst 2023, ar 
rymuso cymunedau amrywiol i gyflogaeth – yn benodol yn ymwneud â chyflogaeth 
yn sector cyhoeddus Gogledd Cymru. 
  
Roedd y gwaith yn canolbwyntio ar ymgysylltu â thrigolion, defnyddwyr gwasanaeth 
a phartïon â diddordeb ar draws Gogledd Cymru (yn unigolion sy’n wynebu 
rhwystrau i gyflogaeth a gweithwyr proffesiynol sy’n gweithio gydag unigolion sy’n 
wynebu rhwystrau i gyflogaeth) fel rhan o sgwrs i wneud yn siŵr bod sefydliadau’r 
sector cyhoeddus yn groesawgar ac yn gynhwysol o bawb. yn eu prosesau 
recriwtio a chadw. Cyflawnwyd y gwaith ar y cyd rhwng dau dîm Cydlyniant 
Cymunedol Gogledd Cymru ac aelodau Rhwydwaith Cydraddoldeb Sector 
Cyhoeddus Gogledd Cymru. 
 
Dywedodd FL wrth y Bwrdd fod amrywiaeth o faterion wedi’u nodi ac mae’r rhain 
wedi’u grwpio’n bedair thema gyffredinol, gan gynnwys: 
 

 Rhwystrau Iaith 

 Cymwysterau a Phrofiad 

 Gwahaniaethau Diwylliannol 

 Mynediad a Phrosesau 
  
Mae nifer o argymhellion wedi'u nodi i fynd i'r afael â'r rhwystrau i gyflogaeth. Mae 
rhestr lawn i’w gweld yn yr adroddiad, ond roedd rhai awgrymiadau’n cynnwys: 
 

 Cynnal deialog barhaus am rwystrau i gyflogaeth – i annog unrhyw faterion i 
gael eu rhannu, fel bod cyflogwyr yn fwy ymwybodol o'r rhwystrau a all fod 
yn gatalydd ar gyfer newid. 

Page 9



 Sefydliadau angori (e.e. ALlau, Iechyd ac Ambiwlans, yr Heddlu, Tân ac 
Achub, Prifysgolion a Cholegau) yn cydweithio i greu cyfleoedd i alluogi pobl 
i fynd ar yr ysgol gyflogaeth, gan gynnwys gwirfoddoli, prentisiaethau, 
lleoliadau a chysgodi 

  Digwyddiad amrywiaeth ar draws Gogledd Cymru, yn gwahodd pobl a 
chyflogwyr. Gall fod yn ffurfiol/anffurfiol ond mae'n rhoi cyfle i bobl 
gymdeithasu a chael gwybodaeth 

 Gwaith gweithredol/rhagweithiol i ddenu staff o gefndiroedd amrywiol trwy 
sut rydym yn hyrwyddo swyddi gwag ac i ba grwpiau yn hytrach na dim ond 
postio hysbyseb ar-lein / Ystyried hysbysebu mewn mannau gwahanol (e.e. 
mannau addoli, lleoliadau ffisegol) yn hytrach nag ar-lein yn unig neu ar 
wefan y sefydliad ei hun 

  Rhwydweithiau Staff, Systemau Cyfaill ar gyfer recriwtiaid Newydd 

 Rhannu pecyn croeso ‘Croeso i Ogledd Cymru’ i bobl sy’n anghyfarwydd â’r 
DU a’r rhanbarth.   
 

Cadarnhaodd FL fod ystyriaeth wedi’i rhoi i sut i barhau ac adeiladu ar y sgwrs hon, 
heb roi gormod o faich ar gyfranogwyr a pheryglu ‘blinder ymgysylltu’. Er bod 
gwaith i wella prosesau recriwtio yn broses gyson, cynigiwch ailedrych ar y pwnc o 
fewn y 12 mis nesaf, er mwyn rhoi diweddariad ar y camau a gymerwyd mewn 
ymateb i'r wybodaeth a rannwyd. 
 
Trwy rannu’r adroddiad â chyfranogwyr a thrwy rwydweithiau sector cyhoeddus ar 
draws Gogledd Cymru, y bwriad yw y gall sefydliadau’r sector cyhoeddus 
ddefnyddio’r adborth a’r mewnwelediadau gwerthfawr i gymryd camau i barhau i 
weithio tuag at wneud sefydliadau’r sector cyhoeddus, fel cyflogwyr, yn fwy 
croesawgar a chynhwysol i bawb y cymunedau y maent yn eu gwasanaethu. 
 
Trafododd y Bwrdd y canlynol ymhellach - 
  

 Holodd y bwrdd a oedd yr adroddiad wedi'i ddosbarthu ymhellach i 
sefydliadau eraill, a hysbysodd swyddogion y bwrdd ei fod yn cael ei drafod 
yn gyntaf yn y BGC, yna byddai'n cael ei rannu; yn ogystal, y camau nesaf 
fyddai dod ag arweinwyr recriwtio i mewn i'r drafodaeth ac yna symud y 
mater ymhellach. Hefyd yn edrych i gael cyllid pellach o grant cymorth BGC 
Gogledd Cymru i wneud gwaith ymgysylltu dilynol gyda’r cymunedau 
amrywiol hyn, ac archwilio opsiynau i weithio gyda grwpiau a sefydliadau 
sydd â diddordeb i wneud gwaith ar ein rhan. 

 Roedd aelodau'r bwrdd yn gefnogol i'r agwedd ranbarthol at y mater. 
Roeddent yn awgrymu gweithio’n agos gyda Byrddau Gwasanaethau 
Cyhoeddus eraill a rhannu arferion; hefyd, byddent yn mynd â'r wybodaeth 
yn ôl i'w sefydliadau priodol ac yn dosbarthu'r wybodaeth.  
 

PENDERFYNWYD bod y bwrdd yn cefnogi, mewn egwyddor, yr argymhellion a 
nodir yn yr adroddiad; fodd bynnag, byddai angen cytuno arnynt yn ffurfiol mewn 
cyfarfod â chworwm o’r BGC. 

 
7 RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL 

 
Cyflwynwyd copi o raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol y Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus 

Page 10



 Awgrymodd y bwrdd dderbyn diweddariad ynghylch y gwaith ymgysylltu 
Naratifau Cymunedol sy'n digwydd yn y Rhyl a Phensarn. 

 Gofynnodd y bwrdd iddynt dderbyn diweddariad ar y Gyfraith Gofal 
Gwrthgyfartal yn y Flwyddyn Newydd ar ôl i'r holl weithdai gael eu cynnal. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo’r rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol. 
 

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 4:25 pm 
 

 

Page 11



Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Conwy a Sir Ddinbych 
Cofnod Camau Gweithredu 

 

 

 

Cyfarfod Cam Gweithredu 
Y sawl sy’n 

gyfrifol am y 
cam gweithredu 

Y Wybodaeth Ddiweddaraf 
Terfyn 
Amser 

Statws 
I’w wneud / 

Wedi gorffen / 
Heb ei 

ddechrau 

Ionawr 
2023 - 

gweithdy 
1 

Ymchwilio i gyfuno’n well â phartneriaethau 
rhanbarthol eraill a gwahodd partneriaid eraill i 
gymryd rhan yng ngwaith y BGC (megis Cyngor ar 
Bopeth, yr Ymddiriedolaeth Genedlaethol a 
Pharc Cenedlaethol Eryri) 

BGC 
Bydd partneriaid perthnasol yn cael eu gwahodd 
fel a phryd y bo'n briodol. 

Amherthna
sol 

Wedi 
gorffen 

Mai 2023 
(cyfarfod 
anffurfiol) 

1 
Mapio gweithgareddau arfaethedig y BGC yn 
erbyn ‘Lefelau Meddwl Trwy Systemau Cyfan’ (o 
Ddigwyddiadau System i Gredoau System) 

Swyddogion 
cefnogi’r BGC 

Ar y gweill - cyflwynodd y swyddogion cefnogi’r 
canfyddiadau cychwynnol yn y cyfarfod anffurfiol 
ym mis Tachwedd.   Trafodaeth bellach yng 
nghyfarfod mis Rhagfyr.   

Rhagfyr 
2023 

I’w wneud 

Gorffennaf 
2023 

(cyfarfod 
anffurfiol) 

1 

Casglu risgiau a materion sefydliadau partner er 
mwyn nodi unrhyw elfennau cyffredin a chamau 
lliniaru mewn perthynas â’r cynllun lles.   Ystyried 
gwneud hyn yn rhanbarthol gyda BGC eraill.   

Amanda Jones 
Ar y gweill, gobeithir y bydd adroddiad yn cael ei 
gyflwyno ar hyn yng nghyfarfod y BGC ym mis 
Rhagfyr.  

Rhagfyr 
2023 

I’w wneud 

Gorffennaf 
2023 

(cyfarfod 
ffurfiol) 

4 
Cefnogi’r broses o gasglu gwybodaeth ar gyfer yr 
asesiad sylfaenol Teithio Llesol  

Swyddogion 
cefnogi’r BGC 

Ar y gweill - trafodaeth ar y gweill gyda’r tîm iechyd 
cyhoeddus o ran y ffordd orau o gasglu 
gwybodaeth.   Bydd adroddiad ar ganfyddiadau’r 
asesiad sylfaenol ym mis Mawrth 2024.    

Mawrth 
2024 

I’w wneud 

Medi 2023 

1 
Archwilio arferion gorau sy’n digwydd mewn 
mannau eraill er mwyn cynnwys partneriaid y 
trydydd sector yng ngwaith y BGC.  

Swyddogion 
cefnogi’r BGC 

Ar y gweill – cysylltu â swyddfa Cenedlaethau’r 
Dyfodol am gyngor. 

Mawrth 
2024 

I’w wneud 

2 
Derbyn y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am Gyfraith 
Gofal Gwrthgyfartal (ar ôl gweithdai’r Hydref)   

Helene 
Belmans, PBC 

Derbyn y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf wedi’i 
ychwanegu at raglen mis Mawrth  

Mawrth 
2024 

Wedi 
gorffen 

3 
Rhannu cyflwyniad a gwahoddiadau i weithdy 
Cyfraith Gofal Gwrthgyfartal (ar gyfer De / Canol 
Sir Ddinbych) gyda’r Bwrdd.  

Hannah 
Edwards  

Wedi’i gwblhau    
Rhagfyr 

2023 
Wedi 

gorffen 

4 
Datblygiad y cynllun ymgysylltu i’w gyflwyno yng 
nghyfarfod mis Rhagfyr. 

Mike Corcoran 
Ar y gweill – caiff ei drafod ymhellach yng 
nghyfarfod mis Rhagfyr. 

Rhagfyr 
2023 

I’w wneud 

 

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 3



 

 

Community wealth building in 
Wales 
Report for the North Wales PSB cluster – January 2022 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

 

Centre for Local Economic Strategies (CLES) 
Established in 1986, CLES is the national organisation for local 

economies - developing progressive economics for people, planet, 

and place. We work by thinking and doing, to achieve social justice 

and effective public services. 

www.cles.org.uk 

 

 

CLES is a values-based organisation. These values are embedded in all our work. 

Fair Treating people with fairness and equality 

Bold Devising progressive solutions through pioneering work 

Collaborative Working with others to achieve the best result 

Independent Always acting with integrity 

Acting in solidarity Supporting, nurturing, and empowering ourselves and others 
 

Page 14

http://www.cles.org.uk/


 

 

Community wealth building in 
Wales 

Report for the North Wales PSB cluster – January 2022 

 

 

Published by CLES, January 2022 

Presented to Conwy County Council, Denbighshire County Council, Welsh Government 

Centre for Local Economic Strategies (CLES)  

info@cles.org.uk  |  +44 (0) 161 832 7871 

www.cles.org.uk  |  @CLESthinkdo 

 

Registered charity no. 1089503. 

Company limited by guarantee no. 4242937. 

© 2020 Centre for Local Economic Strategies  

Page 15



 

Community wealth building in Wales 

Contents 

1. Introduction and context ......................................................................................... 5 

2. Programme approach .............................................................................................. 9 

3. The approach taken in Conwy and Denbighshire............................................... 15 

4. Spend and carbon reporting ................................................................................. 18 

5. Carbon considerations in the commissioning and procurement cycle ........... 20 

6. Next steps................................................................................................................. 28 

7. Action Plan ............................................................................................................... 29 

 

 

Page 16



 

 

Community wealth building in Wales – North Wales PSB cluster 5 

1. Introduction and 
context 

The Centre for Local Economic Strategies (CLES) is delighted to 

present this report to the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Service 

Boards on the conclusion of the first phase of community wealth 

building (progressive procurement) work in Wales. 

The report outlines the approach taken to the overall programme, the 

progress made, key outcomes achieved against the priority area of focus 

highlighted in Conwy and Denbighshire and recommended next steps. 

What is community wealth building? 

The UK’s current economic growth model is failing many locations and 

communities. Recent OECD data showed that the UK is the only developed 

economy in which wages fell while the economy was actually growing, albeit 

meagrely.1 This is part of a broader trend in the UK economy over the last 30 years 

of a growing disconnect between GDP growth and peoples’ real experiences, with 

median income falling as a percentage of GDP. The UK is an economy where one 

in eight workers live in poverty,2 and where 1.3 million people (including children) 

rely on food banks.3 Between 2017-18 and 2019-20, 23% of all people in Wales were 

living in relative income poverty. In the most recent period, 71% of children in Wales 

who were living in relative income poverty lived in working households (around 

140,000 children).4  

These problems are not caused by a lack of wealth, but rather where wealth is 

going, who owns it and who benefits from it. Fuelling this inequality is the fact that 

the fruits of growth are often too readily extracted. At a local level, the prevailing 

model of economic development has often failed to engage with questions of 

wealth distribution, focusing instead on generating contributions to GDP and on 

prioritising inward investment with insufficient regard as to who benefits from this 

investment, and how.  

 
 

 

1 https://www.ft.com/content/83e7e87e-fe64-11e6-96f8-3700c5664d30  

2 https://www.jrf.org.uk/press/uk-poverty-2017-country-reaches-turning-point  

3 https://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/home-news/food-banks-uk-how-many-people-adults-

poverty-a8386811.html  

4 https://gov.wales/relative-income-poverty-april-2019-march-2020-html 

 

Page 17

https://www.ft.com/content/83e7e87e-fe64-11e6-96f8-3700c5664d30
https://www.jrf.org.uk/press/uk-poverty-2017-country-reaches-turning-point
https://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/home-news/food-banks-uk-how-many-people-adults-poverty-a8386811.html
https://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/home-news/food-banks-uk-how-many-people-adults-poverty-a8386811.html


 

Community wealth building in Wales 6 

In response, community wealth building has emerged as a powerful new approach 

to local economic development. Emerging first in the USA and taken forward by 

CLES in partnership with a range of local municipalities, community wealth building 

is a fundamental driver of a wellbeing economy. Community wealth building aims 

to reorganise the local economy so that wealth is not extracted but is instead more 

broadly held and generative, with local roots - so that income is recirculated, 

communities are put first, and people are provided with opportunity, dignity, and 

well-being.  In this, community wealth building seeks to hotwire social, economic, 

and ecological benefits into the economy.  

Community wealth building has a particular focus on the activities of anchor 

institutions. These anchor institutions are large, typically public, and social sector, 

organisations which have a significant stake in a place. Anchors can exert sizable 

influence on economic, social, and environmental priorities, by adopting 

community wealth building strategies.  In terms of public institutions, community 

wealth building asserts the important democratic oversight of those institutions, 

with a strong role for local political leadership.  

In the Welsh context, Public Service Boards (PSBs) provide an existing framework 

for joint working across all public services in each local authority areas in Wales. 

Each board’s well-being assessment identifies shared priorities and objectives, and 

the annual local well-being plan sets out how they intend to meet their 

responsibilities under the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act. 

At the heart of the community wealth building approach are five strategies for 

harnessing existing resources to enable local economies to grow and develop from 

within. 

Five Principles of Community Wealth Building 

  

Plural ownership of the economy – community wealth building seeks to develop 

a more diverse blend of ownership models: returning more economic power to 

Page 18



 

Community wealth building in Wales 7 

local people and institutions. As such, community wealth building asserts that small 

enterprises, community organisations, co-operatives and forms of municipal 

ownership are more economically generative within the local economy than large 

companies or public limited companies. 

Making financial power work for local places – community wealth building 

seeks to increase flows of investment within local economies by harnessing the 

wealth that exists locally, rather than by seeking to merely attract national or 

international capital. For example, local authority pension funds can be 

encouraged to redirect investment from global markets to local schemes. Mutually 

owned banks are supported to grow, and regional banks charged with enabling 

local economic development are established. All of these are ideally placed to 

channel investment to local communities while still delivering a steady financial 

return for investors. 

Fair employment and just labour markets – often the biggest employers in a 

place, the approach anchors take to employment can have a defining effect on the 

employment prospects, incomes, and overall prosperity of local people and local 

communities. Commitment by anchors to pay the living wage, have inclusive 

employment practices, recruit from lower income areas, build progression routes 

for workers and comprehensive union recognition can stimulate the local economy 

and bring social improvements to local communities. 

Progressive procurement of goods and services – progressive procurement is 

a means through which greater economic, social, and environmental benefits can 

be achieved for local places and people. Increased local spend creates jobs, 

contributing to a multiplier effect which in turn creates additional jobs via increased 

demand for local goods and services. Prioritising spend in support of more 

democratic business models ensures that wealth is not extracted for the benefit of 

distant shareholders but is instead distributed locally. Smaller firms retain more 

wealth in local economies than larger firms, and social businesses are hardwired 

through their purpose to deliver a broad range of social benefits. 

Socially productive use of land and assets – anchors are often major land, 

property, and asset holders. These represent an asset base from which local wealth 

can be accrued. In community wealth building the function and ownership of these 

assets is deepened to ensure any financial gain from these assets is harnessed by 

citizens. Furthermore, there is a desire to develop local economic uses, and extend 

local social/community use of those assets. Indeed, much public sector land and 

facilities are the commons, and should be used to develop greater citizen 

ownership of the built, open space and natural environment.  

CLES has worked with dozens of institutions across the UK to develop the 

community wealth building movement, with each locality taking on a different 

blend of activities based on the five elements outlined above.  

Page 19



 

Community wealth building in Wales 8 

Community Wealth Building in the Welsh context 

In Wales, a community wealth building approach aligns well with the existing policy 

framing of the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act. It offers a policy and 

practice toolkit for local anchor institutions to maximise their potential to deliver 

against the Wellbeing Goals. It is also firmly allied to the Welsh Government’s policy 

focus on foundational economy and the renewed focus on growing the ‘missing 

middle’ - increasing the number of grounded firms in Wales and establishing a firm 

base of medium sized Welsh firms which are capable of selling outside Wales, but 

which have decision making rooted firmly in local communities. The foundational 

economy represents a significant proportion of the Welsh economy, with estimates 

suggesting it is four in ten jobs and one pound in every three spent in Wales.  

Building strength and empowerment in local economies and communities will be 

key to Wales’ collective recovery beyond this current phase of the Covid-19 

pandemic.  The pandemic has shone a spotlight on the prevailing weaknesses, 

injustices, and inequalities in our local economies. It has also highlighted the 

prescience of the more progressive policy frame adopted by Welsh Government in 

contrast to the national policy focus from Westminster – but there is an urgent 

need to capitalise on this progressive framing in ways which genuinely deliver 

benefits on the ground, at scale.  

As the current Omicron wave of the pandemic has shown, the course of this 

pandemic is far from linear. We can expect future shocks, potentially from further 

variants, or new pandemics, and certainly as a result of the rapidly unfolding 

climate and ecological crises. There has never been a more urgent imperative for a 

sustained and systemic societal and economic shift to a more just, equitable, 

sustainable, and resilient society. We believe that community wealth building could 

and should play a key role in this transition in Wales, building on the momentum 

achieved through this current phase of work. 

Progressive procurement of goods and services 

This phase of CLES’ work in Wales, whilst introducing the general concept of 

Community Wealth Building to the PSBs, focused specifically on the Progressive 

Procurement pillar. The work has engaged, primarily, with procurement 

professionals from the anchor institutions which have participated in the 

programme. 

By progressive procurement, we mean a number of things. First, it is about 

increasing the importance of procurement as a strategic function. Second, it is 

about increasing levels of spend with local organisations, particularly SMEs, 

democratic businesses, and social businesses. Third, it is about using procurement 

and commissioning levers to address the local economic, social, and environmental 

challenges faced.  

In the PSB context, this is also about moving beyond a single organisational focus 

towards approaches which harness the combined spending power of all the local 

Page 20



 

Community wealth building in Wales 9 

anchor institutions in a place – exploring and developing the scope for collective 

action. 

2. Programme approach 

Aims and objectives 

The aims of the programme were to effect systemic change in local economies 

across Wales, by working with anchor institutions in selected Welsh Public Service 

Board (PSB) areas to introduce and embed the community wealth building concept, 

with a specific focus on progressive procurement; and to disseminate policy & 

practice lessons across Wales. 

CLES has been working alongside the Wales Cooperative Centre, as a delivery 

partner in this programme.  The Wales Cooperative Centre’s input has included 

bringing in their expertise and understanding of the social business sector in Wales, 

providing information on the potential social business supplier base in each PSB 

cluster area, supporting the facilitation of workshops, and leading sessions in two 

of the cluster areas where the potential role of social enterprises was specifically 

highlighted as a priority. 

Initially, the proposal was to work with three or four individual PSB areas, engaging 

with all of the main anchor institutions in those areas.  This was subsequently 

revised at the request of the Welsh Government with the focus being expanded to 

cover five clusters of PSBs: 

• North: Conwy and Denbighshire 

• Mid: Ceredigion and Powys 

• Gwent Strategic Well-being 

Assessment Group (GSWAG) 

o Blaenau Gwent 

o Torfaen 

o Caerphilly 

o Newport 

o Monmouthshire 

• Cwm Taf and Bridgend 

• Swansea Bay City Deal Region 

o Neath Port Talbot 

o Swansea 

o Pembrokeshire 

o Carmarthenshire 

 

Impact of Covid 

The planned commencement of the programme coincided with the start of the 

Covid-19 pandemic. This created some initial, unavoidable, delays and required a 

reprofiling of activity that had previously been planned to be face-to-face.  

Recognising that anchor institutions’ capacity had been impacted by their need to 

respond to the emerging public health emergency and as all organisations sought 

to transition to remote working where possible, it was agreed to focus initially on 

analysing the anchor institutions spend data, prior to arranging commencement 

Page 21



 

Community wealth building in Wales 10 

workshops with participating anchor institutions. This gave rise to a broad phasing 

of activities, as follows:  

 

In Conwy and Denbighshire, the approach has followed a different trajectory, as in 

this area the two anchor institutions which engaged with the programme (Conwy 

County Council and Denbighshire Country Council) wanted to focus on one specific 

issue – how a progressive procurement approach could support their existing 

commitments to decarbonise their procurement supply chains. 

Stakeholder engagement and additional support 

In taking forward this programme as community wealth building partner to Welsh 

Government, CLES has consciously invested time to engage extensively with a wide 

range of stakeholders, to ensure that the work was influential beyond the specific 

anchor institutions directly involved and that it complemented and added value to 

existing activity in Wales. 

This was important because during the period of the programme there were a 

range of initiatives in Wales exploring procurement and foundational economy 

related objectives – most notably the Foundational Economy Challenge Fund 

projects. 

In terms of stakeholder engagement, examples have included: 

• Attending the Ministerial Advisory Board – Foundational Economy, the 

Foundational Economy Subgroup, and the Valleys’ Task Force. 

• Engaging with the Office of the Future Generations Commissioner for Wales 

• Meeting with the Foundational Economy Challenge Fund – procurement 

experts’ panel. 

• Regular attendance and updates to Welsh Local Government 

Association/NHS procurement professionals’ meetings. 

• Providing updates to formal PSB meetings, and meetings with local 

authority cabinet and leadership teams, and senior leaders across key 

anchor organisations. 

We have also sought to provide additional support to Welsh Government wherever 

possible, outside of the formal scope of the contract, such as: 

• Chairing a stakeholder workshop on the proposed development of a 

procurement Centre of Excellence. 

Page 22



 

Community wealth building in Wales 11 

• Undertaking analysis of pan-Wales spend, (NHS Wales food spend). 

• Delivering free-to-access community wealth building workshops and 

training to a broader public sector audience, for example, via an Academi 

Wales organised workshop. 

Commencement workshops: agreeing priority areas 
of focus 

Commencement workshops were held in each PSB cluster area. The workshops 

were used to: 

1) Introduce the theory and practice of Community Wealth Building 

2) Discuss the key characteristics of ‘progressive procurement’ – i.e., 

• Strategic 

o Unleashing the power of procurement, maximising wider impact 

for wellbeing, and being seen as key to local economic reform 

o Embedded politically and in strategy 

• Outcome based 

• Collaborative 

• Accessible 

• Relational 

• Evidence based 

o Where is spend is going geographically? 

o Where, in sector terms? 

o What types of business is it being spent with? 

 

3) Agree the high-level areas of focus which the anchor organisations wanted 

to address through a progressive procurement approach. 

The outputs from the initial round of commencement workshops, were agreement 

in each PSB cluster areas of one-or-more priority themes or areas of focus. These 

are shown in the table below, along with the specific anchor institutions involved 

in each theme: 

 

Table 1: PSB cluster priority themes 

Cluster Theme Organisations 
involved 

North Wales • Using progressive procurement 

approaches to decarbonise 

procurement supply chains 

 

Conwy Council 

Denbighshire Council 

Swansea 

Bay 

• Working group 1: Construction and 

retrofit  

 

 

Dyfed Powys Police 

NPTC Group 

Pembrokeshire Council 

Pobl Group 

Port of Milford Haven 

Page 23



 

Community wealth building in Wales 12 

Cluster Theme Organisations 
involved 

 

 

 

• Working group 2: Food 

procurement 

 

 

• Working Group 3: Enhancing 

opportunities for local SMEs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Working group 4: Health and social 

care procurement 

 

Swansea Council 

Tai Tairian 

 

Carmarthenshire Council 

Dyfed Powys Police 

NPTC Group 

Pembrokeshire Council 

Swansea Council 

 

Carmarthenshire Council 

Dyfed Powys Police 

Federation of Small 

Businesses 

Neath Port Talbot Council 

NPTC Group 

Pembrokeshire Council 

Pobl Group 

Port of Milford Haven 

Swansea Council 

Tai Tairian 

 

Carmarthenshire Council 

NPTC group 

Pembrokeshire Association 

of Voluntary Services 

Pobl Group 

Swansea Council 

 

Gwent • Working group 1: Construction and 

retrofit 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Working group 2: Simplifying and 

sharing best practice  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Blaenau-Gwent County 

Borough Council 

Bron Afon 

Caerphilly County Borough 

Council 

Linc-Cymru 

Melin Homes 

Monmouthshire Housing 

Natural Resources Wales 

Newport City Council 

Newport City Homes 

Pobl Group 

Tai Calon  

Torfaen County Borough 

Council 

United Welsh 

 

Blaenau-Gwent County 

Borough Council 

Bron Afon 

Caerphilly County Borough 

Council 

Melin Homes 

Monmouthshire County 

Council  

Newport Homes 

South Wales Fire & Rescue 

Tai Calon 

Torfaen County Borough 

Council 

Page 24



 

Community wealth building in Wales 13 

Cluster Theme Organisations 
involved 

 

 

• Working group 3: Food 

procurement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Working group 4: Manufacturing 

 

 

 

Caerphilly County Borough 

Council 

Gwent Police 

Monmouthshire County 

Council 

Natural Resources Wales 

Newport City Council 

Torfaen County Borough 

Council 

United Welsh 

Blaenau-Gwent County 

Borough Council 

 

This theme did not 

proceed 

Mid-Wales • Working group 1: Construction & 

retrofit 

 

 

 

 

 

• Working group 2: Enhancing 

opportunities for local SMEs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Working group 3: Support for 

generative suppliers 

 

 

 

 

• Working group 4: Food 

procurement 

 

 

 

 

 

• Working group 5: Business Start-ups 

 

Aberystwyth University 

Ceredigion County Council 

Coleg Ceredigion 

Hywel Dda University 

Health Board / NHS Wales 

Shared Services 

Partnership 

Powys County Council 

 

Aberystwyth University 

Ceredigion Association of 

Voluntary Organisations 

Ceredigion County Council 

Coleg Sir Gar 

Hywel Dda University 

Health Board 

Natural Resources Wales 

NHS Wales Shared Services 

Partnership 

Powys County Council 

 

Ceredigion Association of 

Voluntary Organisations 

Ceredigion County Council 

Coleg Sir Gar 

Department for Work and 

Pensions 

Powys County Council 

 

Ceredigion County Council 

Coleg Sir Gar 

Hywel Dda University 

Health Board 

NHS Wales Shared Services 

Partnership 

Powys County Council 

 

Ceredigion County Council 

Powys County Council 

 

Page 25



 

Community wealth building in Wales 14 

Cluster Theme Organisations 
involved 

Cwm Taf 

and 

Bridgend 

• Theme 1: Enhancing opportunities 

for local SMEs 

• Theme 2: Support for generative 

suppliers 

• Theme 3: Develop common 

approach across anchors to lower 

value spending 

 

Age Connects Morgannwg 

Bridgend CBC 

Bridgend College 

Bridgend Association of  

Cwm Taf Morgannwg 

University Health Board 

Voluntary Organisations 

Business in Focus 

Interlink 

Merthyr Tydfil CBC 

Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC 

South Wales Police 

Valleys to Coast 

 

Action planning and implementation 

Within each PSB cluster area, working groups were established for each theme, 

with the anchor institutions self-selecting the themes they were interested in 

pursuing.  

 

As can be seen from Table 1, above, the overall programme engaged with a 

significant number of anchor institutions. However, not all sectors were uniformly 

engaged with the work. Health Boards, in particular, were less well represented, 

with the exception of Hywel Dda University Health Board in the mid Wales cluster 

and (towards the latter parts of the programme) Cwm Taf Morgannwg University 

Health Board in the Cwm Taf / Bridgend cluster.  

 

Given the programme has been delivered during a pandemic it is unsurprising that 

health boards have had more limited capacity to engage. They also, along with 

other pan-Wales agencies, are currently operating within national procurement 

frameworks and so may perceive that they have less scope for local flexibility 

(although, as CLES’ separate work with Hywel Dda University Health Board is 

demonstrating, there is significant scope for local, bespoke procurement 

approaches which can operate alongside national arrangements). A further 

difficulty for health boards and for pan-Wales agencies, such as National Resources 

Wales, is that they cover geographies which span more than one of the PSB 

clusters. 

 

Page 26



 

Community wealth building in Wales 15 

3. The approach taken in 
Conwy and 
Denbighshire 

The North Wales cluster comprised of two anchor institutions, Conwy Council and 

Denbighshire Council. The work has explored how a community wealth building / 

progressive procurement approach can be applied to the shared strategic 

objective, across both local authorities, to decarbonise procurement supply chains, 

in line with existing organisational commitments to achieve net zero carbon by 

2030. 

Supply chain emissions currently constitute a significant proportion of the two local 

authorities’ overall emissions, therefore effective action to reduce supply chain 

emissions is an essential part of achieving net zero. 

There is a clear fit with national policy. The Welsh Government’s low carbon delivery 

plan, Prosperity for All: A Low Carbon Wales (2019)5 highlights the important role 

of public sector procurement in reducing CO2 emissions through its supply chains. 

The 2021 Wales Procurement Policy Statement (WPPS)6, published in March 2021 

sets the strategic vision for public sector procurement in Wales. It recognises the 

central role that public procurement can play in the delivery of well-being 

objectives and progressive policy priorities including decarbonisation, social value, 

community benefits, fair work, the circular economy, and the foundational 

economy. 

From a community wealth building perspective, procurement and commissioning 

are key policy and practice levers that local authorities and other anchor 

institutions can utilise to mould local economies towards carbon neutrality. There 

is a synergy between efforts to re-localise spend, to prioritise spend on smaller and 

more locally generative suppliers, the creation of dense, local ecosystems of 

socially and environmentally generative businesses in supply chains and the 

carbon reduction agenda.  

Despite a relatively late start for this cluster, significant progress has been made. 

Representatives of both the anchor institutions have been committed and 

engaged. The working group has met five times, with additional smaller group or 

one-to-one meetings to discuss the data analysis work undertaken by CLES: 

Meeting 1 – to agree the scope of work and the desired outputs from the 

programme. At this session we explored participants awareness of community 

 
5 https://gov.wales/prosperity-all-low-carbon-wales 
6 https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/pdf-versions/2021/3/1/1615195510/procurement-policy-

statement.pdf 

Page 27



 

Community wealth building in Wales 16 

wealth building principles (with a specific focus on progressive procurement) and 

its intersection with the decarbonisation agenda. Each local authority shared their 

objectives and what work had been done to date on understanding and addressing 

the carbon impact of their supply chains. 

Meetings 2 and 3 – discussed spend and carbon data analysis and reporting 

including feedback from CLES on our work to cleanse the spend and carbon data 

and develop a more robust methodology for future reporting.  This session 

developed thinking on how carbon considerations can be integrated at various 

touchpoints in the cycle of commissioning and procurement, in relation to 

governance, commissioning and pre-procurement. 

 

Meeting 4 - developed thinking on how carbon considerations can be integrated 

at various touchpoints in the cycle of commissioning and procurement, in relation 

to procurement and contract monitoring. 

Meeting 5 – provided an opportunity for both anchor institutions to meet with 

representatives from Manchester City Council.  Decarbonisation of supply chains 

is one of six key themes being progressed across Greater Manchester via their zero-

carbon coordination group. Manchester City Council utilise a minimum 20% 

weighting for social value and have introduced an additional 10% social value 

weighting for the environment to take the total social value to 30%. This approach 

enables the City Council to consider the steps that suppliers are already taking to 

reduce their carbon emissions and their future plans, how suppliers monitor their 

carbon emissions and their plans to monitor them in the future, including during 

the contract period. The session provided an opportunity to discuss the issues, 

considerations, opportunities, and barriers to adopting a similar approach in North 

Wales.  

 

    

    

 
  A Green Recovery for Local 

Economies 

Hoe  

Add Case Study subtitle here 

 

  How localities should respond to the climate emergency after Covid-19 

In CLES’ July 2020 publication, A Green Recovery for Local Economies, we set 

out a range of actions relevant to procurement that local anchor institutions 

can make: 

• Target their spending power towards local zero carbon suppliers and 

prioritise plural forms of business ownership in the supply chain; this 

 

Page 28



 

Community wealth building in Wales 17 

will ensure that public spending is used to maximise social, 

economic, and environmental value. 

• Give environmental factors a formal weighting in procurement 

decisions, as part of strong social value requirements in all tenders. 

• Implement strong prequalification criteria in tenders, to ensure that 

suppliers who bid for contracts measure Scope 3 emissions in the 

contracting and monitoring stage. 

• Undertake a collaborative analysis of market supply to identify 

environmentally generative suppliers for their goods and services. 

• With this data, the anchors should not only look for local, SME 

suppliers, but also seek to divest from the largest polluters in the 

supply chain, and instead, seek to divert their spending power to 

grow more plural elements of the economy with lower carbon 

emissions. 

• Consider the impact of their procurement spend from a global 

climate justice perspective. Global corporations which contribute to 

extraction of wealth and resources are often found deep in public 

sector supply chains; this is even the case in the renewable energy 

sector, e.g., issues around treatment of Chinese and Bolivian workers 

in the production of lithium-ion batteries. Anchors must ensure that 

human rights for workers in every country is ensured across their 

supply chains. 

• Use procurement spend as a lever to provide capital to new forms of 

supply in the public and commercial sector. 

 

    

 

  

Page 29



 

Community wealth building in Wales 18 

4. Spend and carbon 
reporting 

CLES analysts have supported both Conwy and Denbighshire Councils on their 

approach to spend and carbon data analysis and reporting. This has entailed 

combining quarterly spend data, merging the council’s data (which is classified 

using the Thomson classifications so does not easily map across to the SIC 

classifications used in the Welsh Government reporting tool), cleansing, and 

merging with Atamis data and manually updating supplier data where company 

registration numbers were missing. Using the company registration numbers the 

data was linked to a database complied from Companies House, the charity 

register, the mutual society register and FAME, to merge in 5 digit sector codes 

(SICs) where missing.  

This enabled more accurate matching to the Welsh Government carbon reporting 

tool, linking to carbon factors. Multiplying the factors by the spend gives the total 

estimated emissions for each sub sector. Those SICs already included in Scope 3 

emissions were removed from the total.  

The graphs below show the output for Denbighshire’s data, for illustrative 

purposes. 

Figure 1 – Denbighshire Council spend and carbon (original data) 

 

  

Page 30



 

Community wealth building in Wales 19 

Figure 2 – Denbighshire Council spend and carbon (CLES’ revised analysis) 

 

As can be seen by comparing Figures 1 and 2, above, where local authorities are 

using non-SIC based classifications within their own financial systems, there is 

significant potential for errors in attempting to manually transcribe these to the 

Welsh Government reporting tool. 

Both local authorities have been provided with a spreadsheet toolkit to enable 

them to replicate CLES’ approach to analysis and reporting in the future. 

The current Welsh Government reporting spreadsheet which local authorities are 

required to submit is helpful in highlighting in very broad terms those sectors likely 

to be responsible for the largest proportion of procurement-related carbon. 

However, it is accepted that this is a relatively blunt tool, as the methodology relies 

on industry-average, historic emissions, which are then weighted by value of spend.  

CLES’ view is that this analysis could be done centrally, using the data in the Atamis 

system, with the results made available to local authorities rather than requiring 

each local authority to perform the analysis themselves. Because the methodology 

relies on historic industry averages it does not represent a true baseline or provide 

a way of capturing improvements. Indeed, the only reliable way to demonstrate 

carbon savings using the existing methodology is to reduce the amount of spend.  

Industry averages can still be a useful benchmark - for example, it could be used to 

ask suppliers to demonstrate the degree to which they perform better than the 

historical industry average. It does not, however, provide a robust ongoing 

methodology to demonstrate carbon savings. To do so will require building up a 

more granular picture of bespoke baseline emissions, so that competing suppliers 

can be reliably compared, along with any improvement data from each supplier.  

Additionally, the current methodology makes no distinction between spending on 

projects which help to reduce overall emissions and other types of spending.  

Page 31



 

Community wealth building in Wales 20 

5. Carbon considerations 
in the commissioning 
and procurement cycle 

There are opportunities to build in carbon considerations at various touchpoints 

across the cycle of commissioning and procurement, i.e., in relation to: 

Governance - How carbon reduction is reflected in the organisations overall 

strategic approach, including in the current policy frame for procurement, 

community benefits and social value; approaches taken to ensure organisational 

‘buy-in’; and the strategic management, oversight, and challenge for this agenda.  

Commissioning - How carbon impact is considered in the process of designing the 

goods, services or works the local authorities are potentially looking to procure. 

Pre-procurement - The steps taken to make the market aware of the goods, 

services or works the local authorities are looking to procure and the wider 

outcomes you are looking to achieve through the process; and what support is 

available to the market to help suppliers understand and reduce their carbon 

impact. 

Procurement - The processes for how potential suppliers are asked to 

demonstrate how they will deliver the goods, services, or works, how much it will 

cost, and how carbon impact is considered in this context. 

Monitoring - Approaches to monitoring the extent to which suppliers are 

delivering on agreed commitments in respect of carbon impact. 

Governance 
 

Touchpoints Considerations 

• Review of PSB 

Wellbeing Plan, 

Corporate Plan, 

Procurement Strategy, 

CPRs etc. 

• Internal governance 

and scrutiny processes. 

 

• Ensure carbon objectives and reduction 

targets are reflected in golden thread 

through all layers of corporate policy. 

• Build ownership and commitment across all 

PSB anchors. 

• Use spend and carbon analysis to ensure 

there is a shared awareness of spending 

hotspots/priorities where you would seek to: 

o disinvest in carbon-intensive supply. 

o develop strategies to reduce supply 

chain impact. 

Page 32



 

Community wealth building in Wales 21 

Touchpoints Considerations 

• Develop tailored plans/guides for priority 

sectors (high spend / high carbon) – e.g., 

construction and social care. 

• Engagement, support and challenge across 

senior management, executive and scrutiny 

functions. 

There is some scope to better reflect decarbonisation ambitions through a golden 

thread from corporate policy through to procurement policy, and for contract 

standing orders and corporate procurement rules to be reviewed and updated at 

the end of the current financial year. Developing this consistency in policy 

objectives across corporate and procurement strategy is important both in terms 

of being able to demonstrate that procurement decision making is informed by a 

robust policy position and also because policies send signals to communities and 

to the market about the councils’ expectations and ambitions.  

There is an opportunity for the two local authorities to discuss the approach they 

have developed through this phase of work with other partners on the PSB and 

seek to build a broader partnership approach to decarbonising supply chains. A 

PSB-wide response is likely to be more effective by combining efforts and 

resources, for example in terms of awareness raising and support for local 

businesses in key supply chains. 

There will be a need to develop more specific policy guidance for individual service 

areas, towards a suite of policy positions which reflect more specific policy 

questions likely to be raised by individual service areas – focusing initially on those 

services which are procuring from sectors with the greatest carbon impacts, i.e., 

construction and health and social care. 

A key objective for the governance of this agenda is ensuring that this it is taken 

forward as a whole-organisational effort, with responsibility and accountability 

across the whole system, not simply with the procurement function. The existing 

focus on carbon literacy training for senior officers and councillors is helpful in this 

regard and should support ongoing engagement, support and challenge across 

senior management, executive and scrutiny functions. 

Touchpoints Considerations 

• Service planning 

process. 

• Annual budget process. 

 

 

• Use the service and budget setting processes 

as an opportunity to consider carbon impact, 

progress against reduction targets, and 

opportunities for further improvements. 

• Political considerations: Is the balance of 

spending priorities compatible with climate 

and ecological emergency commitments? 

 

The service and budget planning process are key opportunities to consider the 

Page 33



 

Community wealth building in Wales 22 

carbon impact of procurement supply chains.  These touchpoints in the annual 

budget and planning cycle can be used to consider what progress has been made 

against reduction targets and opportunities for further improvements. There is a 

need to particularly focus on capital block allocations during the budget allocation 

process, as for major capital programmes in particular leaving these 

considerations to business case stage can mean it is often too late to genuinely 

influence.  For capital programmes the importance of considering carbon as early 

on as possible in the commissioning cycle cannot be understated – for example, 

commitments to low carbon building design. 

There is already some consideration of carbon in the budget setting process (e.g., 

Denbighshire County Councils budget pressures process includes a column on 

carbon), so there are opportunities to build on this to enable carbon to be more 

routinely considered as part of budget setting and monitoring processes. 

Governance processes provide an opportunity to establish progress made against 

the baseline, and whether this is indicative of being on target to achieve the overall 

reduction target by 2030. 

Figure 3 – Denbighshire Council modelled target reductions (assuming linear 

progress) 

 

This could be an assessment of progress at a corporate level – i.e., in line with Figure 

3, above, and/or more bespoke targets could be allocated to individual 

departments or service areas. 

Budget setting and agreeing the balance of spending priorities are fundamentally 

political considerations, so there is natural scope for political debate as to whether 

the balance of spending priorities is compatible with climate and ecological 

emergency commitments.  There is clearly a distinction to be made between 

spending on the infrastructure required for a shift to a lower carbon economy (for 

example, investing in the retrofit of housing stock, or in the charging infrastructure 

for electric vehicles) versus spending which potentially perpetuates the fossil fuel 

Page 34



 

Community wealth building in Wales 23 

economy, albeit these factors are not distinguished in the current reporting 

requirements. 

Commissioning 
 

Touchpoints Considerations 

• Service design and 

review 

• Business case and 

options appraisals 

 

 

• Proactively think about how the service 

design or model could be adapted to support 

carbon reduction objectives. 

• Ensure that specifications for goods and 

services are optimised for low carbon. 

In general terms, the earlier that services can be engaged in considering the carbon 

impact of their procurement supply chains, the better. The most significant 

opportunities to influence the carbon impact of spending are likely to be upstream 

of the formal procurement process. 

The processes of service design or review and the development of business cases 

and options appraisals are, therefore, critical opportunities to proactively consider 

how the service design or model could be adapted to support carbon reduction 

objectives. For example: 

• Could the service be delivered in-house rather than via a procurement 

process? Insourcing could be a vehicle to ensure higher environmental 

standards as opposed to trying to influence the market. 

• Are there opportunities to partner with a local social enterprise, community 

business or cooperative that has explicit environmental and social objectives 

– for example, one designed with circular economy principles? If these don’t 

exist consider if there is scope to focus business support capacity on 

developing these new markets locally. 

 

Touchpoints Considerations 

• Completion of 

commissioning forms 

 

• Completion of 

Sustainability Risk 

Assessment 

• Challenge the decision to procure 

o Do you really need to purchase the 

product or service? 

o Are there alternatives to buying the 

product or service? 

o Do you need the specified amount of 

the product/service you are 

purchasing? 

o Does the product or service need to 

meet the specification currently 

used? Are there lower carbon 

alternatives? 

Page 35



 

Community wealth building in Wales 24 

o Can existing resources be modified 

or refurbished? 

The simplest intervention at the commissioning stage is challenge the decision to 

procure – whether is it really necessary to procure or if the intended outcomes be 

achieved in another way.  Self-evidently, avoiding a purchase saves both money 

and carbon. Considering whether the desired outcomes can be achieved by using 

or repurposing existing resources may seem obvious but is easily overlooked. 

The commissioning stage is also an opportunity to consider the specifications of 

the goods or services to be procured. This should consider not only the emissions 

that arise from use but also the embodied carbon in goods and apply the waste 

hierarchy and circular economy principles.  Guidance, including on specific product 

types, is available from several sources, including via WRAP Cymru. 

All these things need building into process, with clear expectations from senior 

management, so that these considerations are be made in a timely way and 

become normalised, with opportunities for challenge built into the process. 

Pre-procurement 
 

Touchpoints Considerations 

• Market / supplier 

engagement 

 

• Pre-tender preparation  

 

• Contract design 

 

• Supplier and market engagement 

programme 

o Priority sectors in high CO2e 

categories & top suppliers (x% spend)  

• Think creatively about how to structure the 

procurement 

• Consider how you can incentivise changes 

 

It is important to devote sufficient time at the commissioning and pre-procurement 

stages to engage with key internal stakeholders and with potential suppliers.  

Nurturing a relational approach to procurement through regular dialogue with the 

market will be important to raise awareness and understanding of the council’s 

decarbonisation objectives. 

Developing a collaborative approach could also unlock innovation and ideas from 

potential suppliers as to the ‘art of the possible’ (for example, exploring if there are 

new or emerging technologies, products, or solutions). It is also an opportunity to 

explore how aware potential suppliers are of their carbon impacts and where these 

arise in their product or service lifecycles, and to provide support or signposting to 

suppliers on how to assess and reduce their carbon impact. Denbighshire County 

Council have trialled a carbon benchmarking spreadsheet for potential suppliers to 

complete in their recent Design and Print tender. Evolving and rolling out this 

approach more broadly could assist both with raising supplier awareness and 

developing more robust benchmarking data. 

Page 36

https://wrapcymru.org.uk/taking-action/public-sector/public-sector-procurement-guidance-page


 

Community wealth building in Wales 25 

A dialogue with potential suppliers in key sectors could also help the local 

authorities to understand and prioritise actions which they may need to take to 

support suppliers to decarbonise, such as the provision of electric charging 

infrastructure, for example. 

Pre-tender preparation and contract design provides the opportunity to think 

creatively about how to structure the procurement to optimise carbon reduction. 

For example: 

• For works contracts, can the goods and labour components be separated (this 

could give greater control over the environmental specifications of the goods, 

as well as supporting local SMEs with regard to cashflow). 

• Can the procurement be ringfenced to local suppliers and/or SME/VCSE 

suppliers? 

• Can the procurement be lotted in a way that encourages local provision? 

• Could a procurement-for-outcomes approach encourage innovation? 

 

Contract design provides an opportunity to consider how decarbonisation could 

be positively incentivised. For example: 

 

• Can a commitment to undertake a carbon assessment be introduced? Could 

this be offered as a free support service for local, generative suppliers? (There 

would be a strong local economic case in proactively supporting local, 

generative suppliers in this way). 

• Longer term ‘commitment contracts’ that are subject to periodic, satisfactory 

performance guarantees on carbon reduction. 

• Incorporating waste reduction targets. 

 

There is potentially scope for business partners within the local authorities’ 

procurement functions to provide more challenge on contract design and this 

should be built into existing processes. 

Procurement 

Aside from implementing the contract design considerations mentioned above, a 

key opportunity in the procurement stage to influence carbon is through the 

enforcement of strong and stretching social value targets which include carbon 

emission considerations. 

An approach in North Wales could be developed which takes the learning from 

leading local authorities in this space and applies that to the local context. To 

support this to happen, CLES engaged with Manchester City Council (MCC) and 

facilitated a workshop session to connect the North Wales cluster with MCC 

officials. 

MCC already had a minimum 20% weighting for social value and have now 

introduced an additional 10% social value weighting for the environment to take 

the total social value to 30%. Potential suppliers are assessed on: 

• The steps that they are already taking to reduce their carbon emissions and 

their future plans; and 

Page 37



 

Community wealth building in Wales 26 

• How they monitor their carbon emissions and how they plan to monitor them 

in the future including during the contract period.  

Supplementary questions on contract-specific emissions are included where 

appropriate, albeit it can be challenging, particularly in the early stages, to establish 

a reliable baseline. 

As in other applications of social value consideration, the MCC experience suggests 

that it is possible to differentiate good answers to enable weighting in favour of 

suppliers able to deliver the goods or services with less carbon impact and/or with 

commitments to reduce their impact, without compromising on quality.  

The approach needs to be proportionate, with greater expectations for larger 

contracts, but even for smaller contracts it is helpful to be able to understand what 

plans suppliers have in place to start measuring their organisations emissions. 

This approach is consistent with the existing Best Value duty and national 

procurement policy. 

Based on the discussions with MCC, our recommendations to Conwy and 

Denbighshire Councils are to consider introducing a formal social value weighting 

component for environmental impact, including carbon emissions. The approach 

should: 

• Have senior level sponsorship and support. 

• Begin with a small number of formal pilots, prior to adopting policy more 

broadly and roll out the approach incrementally. This should include the 

priority categories of spend but start in areas of spend which are more 

straightforward to influence, where more robust evaluation tools and 

alternative options are potentially available – for example, ICT.  

Decarbonising supply in more complex areas, such as social care 

commissioning, will potentially require a more holistic review of service 

design alongside market shaping activity.  

• Be developed with proactive engagement and involvement of potential 

local suppliers and complemented with support and signposting for local 

SMEs. 

 

One of the outputs from this phase of work with CLES that both local authorities 

were keen to develop was a bank of questions for use at PQQ stage and quality 

evaluation to support the evaluation of supplier bids. 

Based on the MCC experience, and our recommendations for Conwy and 

Denbighshire to develop an approach though pilots and action learning, it may be 

advisable to begin by using a simple, standard set of questions that speak to 

suppliers’ awareness of their carbon impact, how they monitor this, and the steps 

they are taking (or plan to take) to reduce their impact.  It may be appropriate to 

broaden this to suppliers’ impact on the environment, beyond carbon.  

  

Page 38



 

Community wealth building in Wales 27 

This could include: 

1. Does the supplier know the impact that their organisation has on the 

environment? How is this monitored or accredited, e.g.  

- Do they hold an environmental accreditation?  

- Are they externally audited? e.g., ISO14001, Carbon Charter 

- Is the environmental impact measured and regularly reported and 

overseen?  

2. Do they have an Environmental Policy or Climate Change Policy?  

- Have they provided evidence that the policy embeds a culture of 

reducing negative environmental impacts within the organisation?  

- Have they evidenced that the Policy is being used and that Climate 

Change is a priority in the organisation? 

3. Do they have a clear action plan to deliver the policy?  

- Do they have a clear action plan outlining the work to be 

undertaken focusing on the biggest impacts, with key targets and 

timelines to the actions to be undertaken? For example: 

i. In relation to travel – what actions are they taking, or do 

they plan to take to reduce, mileage? What actions are they 

taking to reduce the carbon impact of mileage that cannot 

be avoided (e.g., modal shift or shift to electric vehicles)? 

ii. Has an environmental building survey been undertaken, 

and actions agreed to reduce or mitigate any negative 

environmental impact?  

4. Are they working towards being Carbon Net Zero?  

- Have they set a Net Zero target date? Do they have a plan to achieve 

this? 

5. How will they know the environmental impact associated with the 

delivery of this specific contract? 

6. What actions will they take to reduce the environmental impact 

associated with the delivery of this specific contract?  

7. Do they monitor their supply chain impact? What do they do to 

mitigate, reduce, or offset the environmental impact of their supply 

chain? 

Page 39



 

Community wealth building in Wales 28 

6. Next steps 

The workshop discussions have served as both a facilitated assessment of progress 

to date across both local authorities, as well as generating ideas for opportunities 

to develop and thinking as to where to prioritise future efforts. 

A suggested draft action plan is provided in Section 7 of this report (below), setting 

out potential next steps to consolidate practice within the local authorities, and 

opportunities to broaden out the approach to involve other anchor institutions on 

the PSB. The action plan relates specifically to the chosen theme of decarbonising 

procurement supply chains. More broadly, there are opportunities for the two local 

authorities either individually, or collectively with other anchor institutions on the 

PSB, to consider embracing a more holistic approach to community wealth 

building which aligns with local aspirations and wellbeing objectives.  

The refresh of Wellbeing Plans and local objectives for post-Covid local economic 

recovery and reform provide a unique opportunity to develop a set of bespoke 

community wealth building interventions allied to local wellbeing goals and 

objectives. 

CLES would be happy to explore potential ways in which this agenda could be 

further advanced with the local authorities and other partners on the PSB, for 

example: 

• A series of workshops to determine relevant issues and challenges and 

explore how various community wealth building interventions (across the 

5 pillars of community wealth building) could be used to address these.  

• Exploring issues around implementation and teasing out barriers and 

enablers with respect to the adoption of community wealth building 

practice.   

 

 

 

 

Page 40



 

 

Community wealth building in Wales – North Wales PSB cluster 29 

7. Action Plan 

Recommendation Time Horizon Next Steps 

1. Ensure carbon objectives 

are reflected in a ‘golden 

thread’ through all layers 

of corporate policy. 

 

○ Short-term 
○ High-level review of all relevant corporate policy documentation 

to ensure consistency from corporate policy through to 

procurement policy. 

○ Use the adoption of new or refined policy as an opportunity to 

communicate to external stakeholders and send signals to the 

market about the councils’ expectations and ambitions. 

2. Explore opportunities to 

embed oversight, support, 

and challenge into relevant 

internal governance 

processes. 

○ Short-term 
○ Explore how this programme can be built into existing 

governance arrangements and processes, for example: 

• Regular updates to cabinet members, senior management, and 

scrutiny on progress, issues, challenges, and opportunities. 

• Build on the carbon literacy training for officers and councillors to 

develop a more detailed understanding of the implications of this 

agenda for each portfolio area. 

P
age 41



 

Community wealth building in Wales 30 

Recommendation Time Horizon Next Steps 

• Formally embed carbon implications into the service planning 

process. 

• Explore ways in which carbon can be routinely considered as part of 

the annual budget setting process. 

3. Continue to develop 

approaches to spend and 

carbon data analysis. 

○ Medium term 
○ Begin to build in standard questions for potential suppliers as to 

how they monitor their carbon emissions and how they plan to 

monitor them in the future, the steps they are already taking to 

reduce them and any future plans. Use this to develop a more 

accurate set of data for baselining and tracking progress. 

○ Continue to liaise with Welsh Government on their approach to 

spend and carbon reporting. 

○ Begin to review procurement spend for some categories in a 

more granular way to explore opportunities to shift the balance 

of spending within that category to reduce emissions – for 

example, exploring food procurement spend to explore 

opportunities to shift the balance of spending to less carbon 

intensive products. 

4. Pilot an action-learning 

approach to using the 

touchpoints in the 

○ Medium term 
○ Establish a series of short-term ‘action learning pilots’, for 

example, including: 

P
age 42



 

Community wealth building in Wales 31 

Recommendation Time Horizon Next Steps 

commissioning and pre-

procurement stages of the 

cycle of commissioning 

and procurement. 

• High-spend and high-carbon service areas (e.g., construction). 

• Areas of spend where more robust evaluation tools and 

alternative options are potentially available, e.g., ICT spend 

○ Use these action learning pilots as an opportunity to review and 

amend key process documentation, including service and budget 

plans, business cases etc. 

5. Develop bespoke policy 

guidance for individual 

service areas,  

○ Medium-term 
o Develop a suite of policy positions which reflect more specific policy 

questions likely to be raised by individual service areas – focusing 

initially on those services which are procuring from sectors with the 

greatest carbon impacts, i.e., construction and health and social care. 

6. Develop a bolder approach 

to social value weighting 

○ Medium 
○ Carry out a small number of formal pilots for an enhanced social value 

weighting for carbon impact. 

○ Use the learning from the pilots to inform changes to procurement 

policy. 

7. Build a broader 

partnership approach to 

decarbonising 

○ Short-to-medium 
○ Seek to engage other anchor institutions on the PSB with a view to 

developing a collaborative approach. 

P
age 43



 

Community wealth building in Wales 32 

Recommendation Time Horizon Next Steps 

procurement supply 

chains. 

○ Explore opportunities to embed this work (and broader community 

wealth building considerations) as part of the refresh of Wellbeing 

Plans. 

8. More firmly link this 

agenda to economic 

development priorities. 

○ Medium 
○ Consider where the intelligence from analysis of carbon impact of 

procurement supply chains can help inform priorities for targeted 

economic development support for businesses in higher carbon 

sectors to reduce their emissions or transition to more sustainable 

sectors of the future. 

 

 

P
age 44



 

 

Centre for Local Economic Strategies 

CLES, 52 Oak Street, Swan Square 

Manchester, United Kingdom, M4 5JA 

info@cles.org.uk | www.cles.org.uk 

@CLESthinkdo | #clesthinkdo 

0161 832 7871 

 

Page 45



 
 

 

 
BWRDD GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS CONWY A SIR DDINBYCH 

 
RHAGLEN GWAITH I’R DYFODOL  

 
2023 / 2024 

 

 
Cadeirydd: 

Y Cynghorydd Jason McLellan, Cyngor Sir Ddinbych 
 

Is-gadeirydd:  
Y Cynghorydd Charlie McCoubrey, Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy 

 
Cydlynwyr: 

Emma Lea (Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr) 
Amanda Jones a Hannah Edwards (Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy) 

Iolo McGregor a Ceri Blythin-McDonough (Cyngor Sir Ddinbych) 
Justin Hanson, Helen Millband ac Iona Hughes (Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru) 

I’w gadarnhau (Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub Gogledd Cymru) 
 

Pwyllgor sy’n Gyfrifol:  
Cyngor Sir Ddinbych  

 
Ymholiadau: 

01492 574059 / hannah.edwards@conwy.gov.uk  
 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 8

mailto:hannah.edwards@conwy.gov.uk


 

Cyfarfodydd 

Dyddiad y Cyfarfod Pwnc Pwrpas Swyddog Cyfrifol  

12 Rhagfyr 2023 
(Cyfarfod ffurfiol - 

Ystafell Hyfforddiant 5, 
Coed Pella a Zoom)  

Risgiau corfforaethol a phroblemau a 
nodwyd 

Cyflwyno canfyddiadau’r drafodaeth 
anffurfiol am risgiau allweddol. 

Amanda Jones,  
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy  

Adeiladu Cyfoeth Cymunedol a Chaffael 
Cynyddol – canfyddiadau ac 
argymhellion y cynllun peilot 

Ystyried y canfyddiadau a’r 
argymhellion yn dilyn y prosiect. 

Amanda Jones,  
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy  

Datblygu Cynllun Ymgysylltu â’r 
Gymuned 

Ystyried y camau nesaf o ran ein dull 
ymgysylltu.  

Mike Corcoran,  
Rhwydwaith Cydgynhyrchu Cymru 

Naratifau Cymunedol - Y Wybodaeth 
Ddiweddaraf am y Prosiect 

Derbyn y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y 
prosiect ymgysylltu, a gynhelir yn y Rhyl 

a Phensarn.   
Dr Rachel Hughes, Prifysgol Wrecsam  

Arweinyddiaeth Systemau - 
diweddariad ar ymagwedd PSB 

Rhoi diweddariad i aelodau ar y dull 
gweithredu yn dilyn y cyfarfod 

anffurfiol diwethaf a chynnig ar gyfer 
cyfarfod anffurfiol mis Ionawr..  

Amanda Jones,  
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy  

 

24 Ionawr 2023 
(Cyfarfod anffurfiol - 

Ystafell i’w chadarnhau 
a chyfarfod Teams)  Cynnig i gynnal gweithdy Arweinyddiaeth System ar gyfer aelodau BGC. 
 

13 Mawrth 2024 
(Cyfarfod ffurfiol - 

Neuadd y Sir, Rhuthun a 
Zoom) 

Y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y 
Rhaglen Datblygu Clwstwr Carlam 

Derbyn y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y 
rhaglen. 

Sian Fearne-Thomas, Bwrdd Iechyd 
Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr  

Teithio Llesol - canlyniadau’r asesiad 
sylfaenol a thrafodaeth adrodd 

Trafod canlyniadau’r asesiad sylfaenol 
a’r camau nesaf. 

Louise Woodfine, Bwrdd Iechyd 
Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr 

Y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y 
Gyfraith Gofal Gwrthgyfartal 

Derbyn y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y 
rhaglen. 

Helena Belmans, Bwrdd Iechyd 
Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr  

Cynlluniau Llesiant BGC Gogledd Cymru 
Cael gwell dealltwriaeth o waith BGCau 

cyfagos a’r heriau y maent yn eu 
hwynebu. 

I’w gadarnhau (ond gwahodd 
cadeiryddion Byrddau Gwasanaethau 
Cyhoeddus eraill y Gogledd Orllewin) 

 

P
age 47



 

Eitemau Rheolaidd ar y Rhaglen 

Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 

Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Diwethaf 

Materion yn Codi  

Tracio Camau Gweithredu’r Cyfarfod 

Diweddariad gan aelodau partner / Rhannu cyfleoedd 

Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol  

Unrhyw Fater Arall  

 
 

Eitemau dros dro 

Fframwaith Perfformiad Cynllun Lles  
Cyflwyno fframwaith perfformiad lefel uchel i 
gefnogi’r cynllun lles a thrafodaethau ynghylch 
cydraddoldeb ac amddifadedd. 

Iolo McGregor, Cyngor Sir Ddinbych 

 

P
age 48


	Rhaglen
	2 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD DIWETHAF
	3 TRACIO CAMAU GWEITHREDU'R CYFARFOD
	6 ADEILADU CYFOETH CYMUNEDOL A CHAFFAEL CYNYDDOL - CANFYDDIADAU AC ARGYMHELLION Y CYNLLUN PEILOT
	8 RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL

